
1 
 

 

  
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Meeting to be held at the 

Casitas Board Room 
Off the main lobby 
1055 Ventura Ave. 

Oak View, CA 93022 
November 8, 2017 @ 3:00 P.M. 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
3. General Manager comments. 
 
4. Board of Director comments.   
 
5. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 
6. Consent Agenda 
  

a. Minutes from the October 25, 2017 meeting. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda. 
 
7. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 10/19/17 - 

11/01/17. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving report. 
 



2 
 

8. Recommend approval of the Five Year Agreement with Rotary Club of 
Ojai West Foundation for the Ojai Wine Festival to be held at Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area 2018 – 2022.   

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
9. Recommend approval of a Purchase Order to J & H Engineering General 

Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $30,650 for pavement repair. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Recommend approval of the salary range adjustment and job title 

revisions to create the position of Executive Administrator, HR and Risk 
Management. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Motion approving recommendation 
 
11. Information Items: 
 

a. Water Conservation October 2017 Update. 
b. Water Resources Committee Minutes. 
c. Personnel Committee Minutes. 
d. Water Consumption Report. 
e. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
f. Investment Report. 

 
 
12. Adjournment. 
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in 
this meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-
2251, ext. 113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a)). 



1 
 

  
 

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
October 25, 2017 

 
A meeting of the Board of Directors was held October 25, 2017 at the Casitas 
Municipal Water District located at 1055 Ventura Ave. in Oak View, California. 
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. Directors Baggerly, Word, Hicks, 
Bergen and Kaiser were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General 
Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  
There were six staff members and eleven members of the public in attendance.  
President Baggerly led the group in the flag salute. 
 
1. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

Johnny Johnston, Mayor for the City of Ojai expressed the council’s 
sentiment on drought and water security issue.  The city moved to communicate 
with Casitas and OBGMA as major suppliers and we recognize we have no 
authority or jurisdiction but we believe in collaboration in the valley to minimize 
costs and to attract money to help us with that so that we are all pulling the same 
direction.  We are open ready, willing and able.  Casitas has the largest 
jurisdiction.  I would be happy to meet with the staff and talk about messaging to 
the public regarding where we are and where we may be going.  A personal 
concern is I don’t want to lose the sense of urgency and don’t want everyone to 
panic.  I will deliver same message to OBGMA tomorrow.  President Baggerly 
responded that I appreciate that outreach and have expressed the same 
sentiments by this board.  
 

William Weirick, Ojai City Council emphasized the mayor’s strong 
commitment on the part of the council members.  Collaborative efforts are 
essential to maximizing probability of grant applications. The Council is 
committed to that. Collaboration is an important part of moving forward in the 
valley because of the way the grant applications are reviewed. 
 

Renee Roth said it was great to see the article in the Water Deeply 
magazine. There were some good comments on our watershed and how we are 
managing to stay high and dry.  The Green Coalition is getting ready to have 
another article such as that.  It was good to see you at Ojai day.  We had some 
people say they used to live in Ojai and moved to SLO and it was all over the 
place on saving water and what their reduction goals had to be. They came back 
to the Ojai valley and there is no mention of it.  There is nothing going on. There 
does not seem to be a consolidated, coordinated extreme message getting out to 



2 
 

residents.  It is in the Ventura River Watershed management plan so there are a 
lot of things we could be doing.  I talked before about a sustainable landscaping 
book.  Ventura Water is moving ahead and preparing that for their customers.  
We could be doing more to get a stronger message out. 
 

Director Hicks responded that we can always do more.  Ron Merckling 
has done a terrific job getting the message out.  Direct customers lowered usage 
73% and that is incredible.  We are getting the message out and spending a lot 
of money for advertising. Director Bergen added there have been articles in the 
Ojai Valley News, The VC Star, signs, and workshops we do.  Of all the 
programs in Ventura County, I believe we have the most proactive.  If you want 
more, we are communicating with our direct customers.  The City and Green 
Coalition can do more and not beat on us to do more.   
 

Ellen Sklarz mentioned that realtors are giving out wrong information.  
Customers being misinformed.  Maybe getting together with realtors may be 
beneficial.  As a citizen there have been so many entities not collaborating 
enough to achieve a common goal.  I hope I am seeing a shift to come together 
for bigger common good. I am so excited by Angelo’s presentation and hope for 
a valley wide plan. I support item 7 and support what Johnny and Bill said. 
 

Ron Merckling appreciated the accolades for our efforts and emphasized it 
is a whole team including Cinnamon McIntosh, Bryan Sandoval and Larry Harris 
who were all at Ojai day working hard.  Nov 2nd there is a Ventura River 
Watershed meeting to talk about water issues in the area. 
 
2. General Manager comments. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum expressed that he watched Ron Merckling and the 
conservation team during Ojai Day talking with people and they had a good idea 
to have people take a pledge for water conservation.  They had over 190 pledges 
This was one of the best Ojai Days I have seen.  We had more smiles than we 
ever had in taking over the Ojai water system.  There were a lot of questions on 
when they will get their first water bill. The Recreation area had a lot of visitors in 
their area.  A lot of credit to Carol Belser and her staff not only for recreation but 
also to protect our water supply in our lake.  Her staff worked very hard and had 
good public interactions.  It is good to be embraced by the public.   
 

On November 9th at 2:00p.m. we have the AWA bus tour.  Let us know if 
you can make it as we welcome those folks. If the public is interested contact 
Kellie at AWA Ventura county.    
 

Regarding the Ojai system there continue to be numerous leaks. On a 
positive note, we are close to finishing replacing 1929 pipe on Mallory Way and 
Eucalyptus.  There is a lot of aged infrastructure that was not tended to for 
decades.   
 



3 
 

3. Board of Director comments.   
 

None 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

Director Word attended the water issues meeting talking about alternative 
supplies.  Susan from Calleguas gave a report on what they found on exploring 
alternatives.  The alternatives were ranked: 1 was recycling, 2 was retention, 3 
was arrundo removal. A 4-6 acre dense stand of arrundo removal can generate 
2000 acre feet of water. After that was shared desal and almost at the bottom of 
the list was imported water because of cost and reliability.  In addition to that, 
there was a report on Fox Canyon groundwater sustainability.  The Oxnard plain 
is overdrafted.  They have to reduce the pumping by 40% in the Oxnard plain for 
it to reach a sustainable yield over the next 20 years. They are nowhere near 
that.  A representative from Metropolitan was at that meeting and their take on 
Westlands vote to not support the tunnel is they are looking for the deal they 
have now, just pay for the water and not for the project.  Director Word passed 
out a legislative update. 
 

President Baggerly attended Ojai Day for OBGMA that I am appointed to.  
It was a very busy day.  A lot of people got informed on how groundwater works 
in the Ojai basin.  It was a very positive experience.   
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
  

a. Minutes from the October 11, 2017 meeting. 
b. Service contract with Mission Linen Supply for the provision of 

uniform pants for treatment plant staff for an annual expense of 
$1,300. 

c. Outside Contract to fabricate four replacement wheels for intake 
structure grapple cart in the amount of $10,400. 

d. Purchase of Case 580SN Backhoe from Diamond A Equipment 
Sales in the amount of $96,417.75. 
 

Director Word asked for a correction in the minutes items 7-13 voting 
needs to be modified to show his votes as aye. 
   
 The Consent agenda was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 10/5/17 - 

10/18/17.       APPROVED 



4 
 

 
 Director Kaiser questioned the encroachment permit for the City of Ojai.  
Mr. Wickstrum explained that we have two things going one, the normal patch 
work for the leaks over the last few months and the permit to do the pipeline 
replacement at Mallory and Eucalyptus.   
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Word the Accounts 
Payable Report was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Presentation by Regina Hirsch and Angelo Spandrio regarding “An 

Integrated Self-Reliant Water Strategy for Ojai Valley”. 
 
 Angelo Spandrio and Regina Hirsch provided a presentation regarding 
collaborative planning and implementing action to take advantage of state 
funding grant opportunities.  They suggested that funds spent on the state water 
tie in and hobo project could be used.  They suggested a collaborative meeting in 
Mid-November to early December to build a Prop 1 Ojai Valley Management 
Plan.  Handouts were provided by Angelo Spandrio and Regina Hirsch exploring 
grant funding available. 
 

Randy Haney, Ojai City Council added that we reached out to Steve a few 
weeks ago to meet with Regina.  I believe it was a good meeting and there is 
something in it for all of us.  Regina finding us is a blessing and will be fools if we 
don’t tap into her.  She is a great resource for this community to become more 
sustainable.  He submitted the Ojai Valley Water Sustainability Plan and asked 
that Casitas be a part of it along with the City and OBGMA and some other 
entities.  Someone is needed to lead and manage this.  
 

Ellen Sklarz agreed with Randy, having Regina come in she seems to be 
very collaborative.  It would be a great gift to bring us all together.   
 

Renee Roth mentioned that Ron was kind enough to give me a copy of 
the 2016 Urban Water Management Plan and Ag Water Management Plan.  
There is a section on future water projects.  You have made a lot of progress on 
what you have done so far and I appreciate the efforts that have been made.  I 
would like to agree that a regional approach after sitting on the Ventura 
Watershed Council or six years I see projects funded at state level and most of it 
is downstream.  Part of it has to do with the matching funds.  We are at a critical 
turning point and have to spend more money to find more sources of water.  I 
believe the state realizes we are in a unique position and wants to help us. I 
endorse what Regina and Angelo have said. 
 



5 
 

Director Kaiser asked Regina if she has her own business and if the 
grants pay for her services and Regina answered yes.  Director Bergen added 
that there is a lot of stuff going on and I can see the need for integration and 
coordination.  I am involved in the application for the Upper Ventura River GSA 
and there is a capacity problem.  There is a lot of administration and a lot of time 
and the match is a big issue.  Some plans are mandated, legally mandated.  We 
can’t operate with anyone else except DWR.  It is a big plan and will be four 
years down the line.  Answers are not known yet.  There is no mechanism to 
jump into another area. You need to define where you are going with this.  Do 
you want projects that are ancillary to what is going on?  I feel like Casitas staff 
are so overstretched at this point we could not lead this at the time.  We have 
done grants and they take a lot of time and energy just in the administration.  I 
would like to pull together the whole picture of the Ojai valley and wonder how we 
go about it and I’m not sure how it works. 
 

Randy added that is why it can’t be one entity, it has to be a group or 
team.  He added that if we use we can’t do it as our excuse it will never get done.   
We can’t wait.  We need to look at this and figure out what each of us can give.  
We can’t have the mentality that we can’t do it.  
 

Director Kaiser added I appreciate that and we have to look at our existing 
priorities.  We have just taken over the Ojai system and grants do take up 
considerable time.  Having been involved in grant writing it takes a lot of time.     
 

President Baggerly added obtaining a grant is not a goal in itself as it does 
not gain one drop of water.  Be prepared to tell us what is on your mind.  You 
have not provided any idea on the projects the money will pay for.  What kind of 
governance will be there?  Who will administer the grant, who gives up authority 
for dealing with water so a few ngo’s that want to get involved to tell us what to 
do.  There is no structure whatsoever.  You have not provided structure for how 
this might work and that does not work at all.  Is there any idea on what projects 
the money would pay for and what legal governance the group would be under. 
 
 Regina added the governance depends on the grant. President Baggerly 
added staff would need to look at it to see if it is feasible. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum added the questions just asked could be a good first 
meeting.  We have looked for opportunities since 1952.  Six years ago we were 
looking at taking over the Ojai system and previous conjunctive use process for a 
party that didn’t’ want to be a part of the party.  You need to bring water to the 
table.  There are some opportunities.  Ventura County Watershed Protection 
District has worked on arrundo removal for a few years.  Matilija Dam removal is 
a good candidate for stream flow enhancements.  The Hobo project may go a 
long way for this community.  Collaboration is good but the other part is 
understanding that we have some entities we are already working with regionally 
such as the Watersheds Coalition Ventura County.  We have a collaborative 
process within the county system, ratings and promoting valuable projects with 



6 
 

support of agencies within Ventura county.  Locally, the City of Ojai can be 
supportive of these projects as it helps to be successful for grant funding. We 
now are the water purveyor of that city.  Perhaps a first meeting that may be 
some of the discussions.  We can’t answer all situations.  We approached Senior 
Canyon and worked with them to build their system up.  It was quite an effort for 
six years to help this mutual water company.  Takes a lot of effort and takes a 
community to do it. 
 

Randy asks for your commitment to attend a meeting.  Angelo and Regina 
and I will put together a simple agenda.  
 
President Baggerly added never lose sight for our fiduciary responsibility.  Be 
careful to encumber those agencies with debt.  We could move forward with 
projects for Watershed Coalitions of Ventura County.  Putting the Hobo project 
on that list. It is not as if we are sitting here doing nothing.  We are working 
through specific issues within our budgets.  He directed staff regarding a meeting 
with Director Kaiser suggesting analysis on the impacts and revenue cost 
benefits analysis. 
 
8. Request of Valerie Barth to reverse the over allocation penalty and water 

usage charges resulting from a private water line leak.  
          DENIED 

Valerie Barth stated a leak was incurred as the result of force pressure on 
my water.  The water was off and turned back on and was opened full bore under 
extreme pressure as a result I had three leaks which caused overconsumption 
and penalties.  I ask that the fees and charges of the penalties be waived due to 
the unnecessary pressure forced on the line.  This wasn’t due to anything I did.  I 
have taken responsibility for other leaks.  To blow it on three places it was too 
much pressure.  This is the responsibility of Casitas. It would not be right for me 
to cause damage on someone else’s property.   

 
Mr. Wickstrum explained the meter sits near the surge tank at top of the 

hill near Spring Street.  She lives down below Spring Street.  The valve opened 
up and the pressure may be close to 200 psi at her house.  She shows a 
pressure regulator that our individual noticed there was water coming out down 
near the property.  Her line runs down the hill.  It was a coupling that gave way.  I 
had one break in June with time and age.  The question she is raising is turning it 
off due to non-payment and turning it back on caused the three leaks. She has 
had zero use.  The water that did leak from her own plumbing.  We have people 
who have come before us wanting leak relief. 
 

Director Word added have to maintain a certain level of water pressure.  I 
have had to put pressure regulators on my property to bring the pressure down.  
Valerie stated I have regulators and it blew before the pressure regulator. She 
added it is the way the lines are handled and common to know how much 
pressure is asserted when you open a valve.   
 



7 
 

Director Kaiser said looking at the staff report it talks about 0 consumption 
since May and the lack of payment being the impetus for whey the water was 
turned off and then back on.  He added we have to have consistency on treating 
our rate payers and have zero allowance for over consumption and water leaks.  
 
 Director Kaiser moved to deny the request.  President Baggerly added 
that under normal usage her lines would have been intact.  Extra pressure they 
got because of us turning it back on we are somehow implicated in the break.  I 
won’t support the motion. 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Word with the 
additional suggestion that staff would work out a payment schedule, the above 
appeal was denied by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Word  
  NOES: Directors: Hicks, Baggerly 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
9. Recommend approval of unbudgeted costs to upgrade the network 

connection between Lake Casitas and the District Office by the purchase 
of materials and support of a consultant in the amount of $7,000. 

         APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
10. Progress Report by Staff on the development of the Dressenid Mussel 

Invasive Species Rapid Plan. 
 
 Mr. Wickstrum explained that six weeks ago you challenged us to put 
together a rapid response plan, to get it in place and get it to be something that 
DFW could approve. It is an Emergency response and when we do this in 
coordination with incident command center and similar practices just in case we 
get someone from FEMA looking at us. It makes sense; the existing emergency 
action plan has situations such as contamination of the water.  The structure of 
how we would set up the incident command center and what follows is the rapid 
response plan if we should ever discover veliger’s in Lake Casitas.  Prevention 
and monitoring plans have been done for quite some time.  
 

Carol Belser discussed the actions that would be taken in the Recreation 
Area and Susan McMahon discussed the actions and analysis that would be 
taken by the Water Quality section and possible treatment and permit issues. 
Michael Shields discussed concerns about infrastructure and is reviewing 



8 
 

possible coatings that could be placed on some of the material to discourage the 
mussels from attaching. Ron Merckling briefly discussed a detailed 
communication plan to develop how to communicate with the different customer 
groups. 

 
President Baggerly asked for a presentation to the Board on November 

22nd. 
 
11. Resolution changing the meeting time of the second regular Board 

meeting of November 2017, cancelling the second regular Board meeting 
of December 2017, rescheduling the November Finance Committee to 
November 14th and cancelling the December Water Resources meeting. 

       ADOPTED AS MODIFIED 
   
 Mr. Wickstrum mentioned a change to the resolution as it is the Executive 
Committee that is to be changed not the Finance Committee.  Director Bergen 
mentioned she would not be able to attend the November 22nd meeting. 
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Kaiser the above 
resolution as modified was adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 17-28 
 
12. Information Items: 
 

a. Lake Casitas Monthly Status Report for September 2017. 
b. ACWA 2017 Fall Conference Memorandum. 
c. Executive Committee Minutes – 10/13/17. 
d. Finance Committee Minutes – 10/20/17. 
e. Investment Report. 

 
On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Word, the 

Information items were approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
 President Baggerly moved the meeting to closed session at 5:15 p.m. 
 
14. Closed Session 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9 



9 
 

Name of Case: Paula Suzanne Taylor v. Casitas Municipal Water District; 
Stephen E. Wickstrum and DOES 1 through 10, inclusive. 
Civil Action No. 2:16-cv-7864-BRO-E. 

 
President Baggerly moved the meeting back to open session at 5:54  with 

Mr. Mathews stating the board met with special counsel who provided an update 
to the board and no formal action was taken. 
 
15. Adjournment. 
 

President Baggerly adjourned the meeting at 5:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
     ____________________________ 
     Bill Hicks, Secretary 

 











































 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 Interdepartmental Memorandum 
 
 
 
DATE: October 31, 2017  
 
TO: Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Five Year Agreement for the Ojai Wine Festival from Rotary Club of 

Ojai West Foundation 2018 - 2022  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the attached 5 year agreement for years 2018 -2022 for use of the Event Area on the 
second Sunday of June for years 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022.   
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
The Ojai Wine Festival is a model event at Lake Casitas and the five year agreement has now 
expired. The new agreement has been changed slightly from the past agreement in regards to 
storage allowance and tables and was reviewed by the Recreation Committee at their October 2, 
2017 meeting. The Committee requested that our insurance broker, Alliant, review the insurance 
requirements to determine that they are appropriate. Alliant was subsequently contacted and 
confirmed that coverage is adequate. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Ojai Wine Festival has, for over 20 years, been an excellently organized, welcomed event at 
the Lake Casitas Recreation Area and therefore it is recommended that the Board approve the 
attached five year agreement.   



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 
FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT FOR EVENT 

 
OJAI WINE FESTIVAL 

MULTI-YEAR CONTRACT 2018-2022 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT, called herein "Casitas", and ROTARY CLUB OF OJAI WEST FOUNDATION, called herein 
"Sponsor".  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED as follows: 
 
1. Event. 
 

(a) Sponsor will conduct the Ojai Wine Festival (hereinafter referred to as “event”) on the second 
Sunday in June for years 2018-2022, specifically, June 10, 2018, June 9, 2019, June 14, 2020 and June 13, 2021 
and June 12, 2022.  Because of the family oriented nature of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area (hereinafter referred 
to as “LCRA”) facilities, Casitas reserves the right to disapprove any music, acts, entertainment, performances or 
attractions at any time which it considers, in its sole discretion, to be inconsistent with its current philosophy. 
 

(b) While Casitas will make every effort to provide its facilities for Sponsor’s events, Casitas shall 
have no liability to Sponsor if Casitas’ facilities become restricted or closed for reasons including, but not limited 
to, acts of God, terrorism, war or the inability to provide facilities if permitting agencies, including the Bureau of 
Reclamation, revoke permits or authorization to use facilities.  This includes the Event Area itself as well as 
parking areas.  In the event Casitas loses the ability to allow vehicles to be parked on the Watershed lands, Casitas 
will make every effort to make space available for vehicles to be parked within the Recreation Area, however, any 
costs such as busing or obtaining satellite parking shall be Sponsor’s sole responsibility with no liability to Casitas 
whatsoever.   
 
2.  Location.  The events will be staged at the Wadliegh Arm Event Area.  Sponsor will have exclusive use of 
the area east from the shoreline gate at trailer storage to the closed area fence line at the beginning of the East 
Shoreline Trail. 
 
3. Time and Description of Activities.  Activities will begin at 10:00 a.m. and end at approximately 
5:00 p.m. on each specified day of the event.  Attendance, as reported by Sponsor, is expected to be approximately 
3,000 – 4,000 people per day.  The event will include a wine tasting, live music, vendors, food and drink as well as 
a children’s play area.  
 
4. Payment to Casitas.  Sponsor shall pay Casitas the following amounts: 
 
 (a) A minimum payment of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) per event day for each year 
of the Agreement, 

or the greater of: 
 
 (b) Ten percent (10%) of total gross receipts up to and including $100,000.00 as defined in (3) below. 
 

(c) Twelve percent (12%) of total gross receipts from $100,000.01 up to and including $150,000.00 as 
defined in (3) below. 
 
 (d) Fifteen percent (15%) of total gross receipts over $150,000.00 as defined in (3) below. 



 2 

 
  (1) The payment schedule outlined above shall remain in full force and effect even if Casitas’ 

power service provider is unable to supply electrical power during the event.  Casitas shall 
have no liability in the event this occurs. 

 
  (2) The above payment shall continue as long as tickets are sold for the event.  Casitas will 

meet with Sponsor within thirty (30) days after the event to account for tickets used and 
receive payment therefor.  

 
  (3) "Gross Receipts" 
 
   a. Except as specifically provided by policy statement issued by the Casitas General 
Manager, the term "gross receipts" as used in this Agreement, is defined to be all money or charges received from 
ticket sales, sales of any merchandise by Sponsor, food vendor application fees, art/craft vendor application fees, 
and revenue received from parking and camping. 
 
   b. Except as specifically provided below or by policy statement issued by the General 
Manager, there shall be no deduction from gross receipts for any overhead or cost or expense of operations, such as, 
but without limitation to salaries, wages, costs of goods, interest, debt amortization, credit, collection costs, 
discount from credit card operations, insurance and taxes.  Bona fide bad debts actually incurred by Sponsor or its 
subcontractors, assignees, licensees, concessionaires and permittees may be deducted from gross receipts.  There 
shall, however, be no deduction for bad debts based on past experience or transfers to a bad debt reserve.  
Subsequent collection of bad debts previously not reported as gross receipts shall be included in gross receipts at 
the time they are collected. 
 
   c. Except as specifically provided below or by policy statement, gross receipts 
reported by Sponsor must include the full usual charges for any charges for any services, goods, rentals or facilities.  
Gross receipts shall not include direct taxes imposed upon the consumer and collected there from by the Sponsor 
such as, but not limited to, retail sales taxes, excise taxes, or related direct taxes, which are direct taxes paid 
periodically by Sponsor to a governmental agency accompanied by a tax return statement. 
 
   d. The Casitas General Manager, by policy statement, consistent with recognized and 
accepted business and accounting practices, and with the approval of Casitas Legal Counsel, may further interpret 
the term "gross receipts" as used in this Agreement. 
 
  e. "Gross sales price":  the total consideration resulting from the transfer or granting 
control of this Agreement determined by the total of cash payments and the market value of all non-cash 
consideration, including, but not limited to, stocks, bonds, deferred payments, secured and unsecured notes, and 
forbearances regarding claims and judgments. 
 
   f. Sponsor shall be required to maintain a method of accounting which, to the 
satisfaction of the Casitas General Manager, shall correctly and accurately reflect the gross receipts and 
disbursements of Concessionaire in connection with event.  The method of accounting, including bank accounts, 
established for said event shall be separate from the accounting system used for any other business operated by 
Sponsor.  Such method shall include the keeping of the following documents: 
 
    (i) Regular books of accounting such as general ledgers. 
 
    (ii) Sequentially numbered tickets and/or armbands (to include tickets sold, 

given used or unaccounted for).  All entrance to the event shall, for the 
purpose of accounting, count as tickets used. 

 
    (iii) Journals including any supporting and underlying documents such as 

vouchers, checks, tickets, bank statements, etc. 



 3 

 
    (iv) State and Federal income tax returns and sales tax returns and checks and 

other documents providing payment of sums shown. 
 
    (v) Cash register tapes appropriately identified as to type of gross receipt 

(daily tapes may be separated but shall be retained so that from day to day 
the sales can be identified). 

 
    (vi) Any other accounting records that the Casitas General Manager deems 

necessary for proper reporting of receipts. 
 
   g. All sales and fee collections shall be recorded.  The means of recording such sales 
and fee collections may include electronic data processing and record keeping equipment.  The electronic data 
processing and record keeping equipment shall contain such features as the Casitas General Manager may 
reasonably require for the purpose of assuring that an accurate record of the transaction is created and retained by 
the equipment to be used.   
 
   h. All documents, books and accounting records shall be open for inspection and re-
inspection at any reasonable time during the term of this Agreement.  In addition, the Casitas General Manager may 
from time to time conduct an audit and re-audit of the books and business conducted by Sponsor and observe the 
operation of the business so that accuracy of the above records can be confirmed.  All information obtained in 
connection with the Casitas General Manager's inspections of records or audit shall be treated as confidential 
information and exempt from public disclosure thereof to the extent permitted by law. 
 
   i. Sponsor shall not be required to maintain those documents, books and accounting 
records, required by this section, that pertain to the period for which an audit has been completed and a report of the 
finding has been issued by the Casitas General Manager and accepted by the Sponsor.  If there is a dispute as a 
result of said audit, the documents, books and accounting records shall be maintained until all audit disputes have 
either been settled by agreement of the parties, or adjudicated by the final judgment of a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 
 
   j. Notwithstanding paragraphs 4(h) and (i), Sponsor shall comply with all State and 
Federal retention of records requirements. 
 
   k. Sponsor shall furnish the Casitas General Manager with a gross receipts report 
showing the amount payable therefrom to Casitas.  In addition thereto, Sponsor shall furnish a financial statement 
and a balance sheet prepared in a form acceptable to Casitas.  The financial statement shall be submitted within 
thirty (30) days after the event. 
 
   l. In the event that an audit or review conducted by the Casitas General Manager 
finds that due to Sponsor’s non-compliance with its obligation to report gross receipts received in connection with 
this event, an actual loss and/or a projected loss of revenue to Casitas can be determined, the Casitas General 
Manager shall bill Sponsor for said losses and said amount is to be paid to Casitas within thirty (30) days following 
billing therefor unless otherwise extended by the Casitas General Manager.  
 
   m. Should the Casitas General Manager find that the additional payment due to 
Casitas exceeds two percent (2%) of the total amount which should have been paid as determined by such review or 
audit and observation, and there is no reasonable basis for the failure to report and pay thereon, Sponsor shall also 
pay the cost of the audit as determined by Casitas. 
 
   n. Sponsor shall cause any and all of its subcontractors to comply with these 
requirements except that a subcontractor shall only be required to establish and maintain those accounting records 
that the Casitas General Manager deems necessary to examine the reported gross receipts in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards. 



 4 

 
 (e) All expenses and invoices owed to Casitas shall be paid in full within thirty (30) days after the 
event unless otherwise noted. 
 
 (f) Seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00) refundable security deposit due to Casitas thirty (30) days 
prior to each event each year.  The security deposit shall be fully refundable to Sponsor within thirty (30) days after 
each event provided that Sponsor shall have returned the area to a clean pre-use condition including trash pick up 
and removal, and sign removal, to Casitas’ satisfaction and that sponsor shall have paid in full, all expenses and 
invoices owed to Casitas which may include, but shall not be limited to: 
 
  (1) Any charges, billed at the rate of fifty dollars ($50.00) per hour, for removal of signs.  Any 

signs remaining posted after one (1) day after the event will be removed by Casitas Staff 
and the Sponsor billed therefor. 

 
  (2) Any costs for clean up in excess of the security deposit incurred by Casitas and billed to 

Sponsor. 
 

 (g) Seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00)  non-refundable fee due to Casitas at the time of execution of 
contract, and 30 (thirty) days prior to each event each year, to secure the date(s) stated in paragraph 1(a) above with 
Casitas.  This amount will be applied towards fees due referenced in Section 4(a) thru 4(d). 

 
5. Banner Fee. Space is not guaranteed, but if available, Sponsor may display a banner at the corner of 
Highway 150 and Santa Ana Road with the prior approval of Casitas as to context and size.  Sponsor shall provide 
the banner proof for approval to Casitas a minimum of ten (10) days prior to banner display date.  Casitas will 
display said banner starting on the Monday immediately prior to the event through the completion of the event.  
Sponsor shall pay one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) for a seven day duration per each annual event after service 
has been provided each year.  Fees for this service shall be paid in accordance with Section 4(e). 
 
6. Services Provided by Casitas.  Casitas shall provide the following for the event: 
 

(a) Forty (40) trash cans, and twelve (12) recycle containers as provided in Section 7 herein below 
 

(b) Fifty (50) tables already located in the area.  
 
(c) Parking for the event in a designated area on the north side of Santa Ana Road opposite the event 

Area.  Casitas shall provide all signs for cross walks and parking, and Sponsor shall pay Casitas for any signs not 
returned after the event. 
 

(d) Encroachment permit from the County of Ventura for temporary traffic control for use of parking. 
 
(e) Labor and materials for the event that are available and agreed upon in writing prior to the event at 

Sponsor’s cost.  
 

(f) Sponsor may use the water faucets in the Event Area. 
 

(g) Sponsor may use the electrical outlets in the Event Area, which are supplied by Casitas.  Under no 
circumstances shall the electricity panels be altered or tampered with by any person.  Breaker panels are to remain 
locked for safety purposes and only Casitas personnel shall have access to the panels. 
 

(h) Sponsor understands that no refunds, credits or adjustments will be made in the event Casitas’ 
power service provider is unable to supply electrical power during the event.  Casitas shall have no liability in the 
event this occurs.



 5 

(i) Space for one large self-contained storage unit in the LCRA Maintenance Yard. Sponsor hereby 
acknowledges that Casitas has no responsibility or liability to ensure theft prevention of contents. Storage unit 
supplies will be accessible upon request and by appointment by contacting the Maintenance Foreperson or 
designated Casitas staff.  

 
7. Provisions by Sponsor.  Sponsor shall provide the following for the event: 
 

(a) A minimum of thirty (30) chemical toilets, including at least one (1) that complies with ADA 
requirements for the handicapped.  The required number of chemical toilets may increase or decrease year to year at 
Casitas’ sole option based on attendance trends.  Sponsor agrees to provide Casitas with a copy of the contract at 
least ten (10) days prior to the event.   
 

(b) LCRA staff may enter the event at any time to monitor the event for quality control, at no charge, 
and without presenting a ticket. 
            

 (c) Trash Dumpsters for the Event.  Sponsor shall make arrangements with a local disposal service for 
supply and removal of dumpsters.  Sponsor agrees to provide Casitas with a copy of the contract at least ten (10) 
days prior to the event.  Two 30 yard dumpsters shall be included in Sponsor’s arrangements. 
                        

(d) Solid Waste Reduction & Recycling.  In order to comply with AB 2176 which has been enacted in 
an attempt to reduce the amount of waste going to landfills, Sponsor shall: 

 
(1) Submit a written plan to Casitas for Casitas’ approval, ten (10) days prior to the event, 

outlining a method to reduce and recycle solid waste generated as a result of the event.  
The plan may include arrangements with a local waste hauler to pick up and dispose of 
waste and recyclable material which is to be sorted into separate containers.  As part of this 
program Sponsor may use available recycle containers and bags provided by Casitas.  
Sponsor will be charged for any bags used. 

 
(2) If attendance is over 2,000 people per day, Sponsor is responsible for reporting the amount 

of recyclable material collected and removed to the County of Ventura within thirty (30) 
days after the event,.  A copy of such report shall also be filed with Casitas within the same 
time frame.  Information should be sent to: 

 
Ventura County PWA, W&S, IWMD 
800 South Victoria Avenue, #1650 
Ventura, CA 93009-1650  

 
At the time of execution of this contract the contact person is: 
    
David Goldstein (805) 658-4312 or by email at david.goldstein@ventura.org.   

 
(e) Adult crossing guards for the crosswalks at all times during which cars are parked on the watershed 

parking area, or Sponsor shall pay for Casitas to provide such guards.  Crossing guards with hand held, two sided, 
signs and safety vests provided by Sponsor shall be trained and comply with the safety requirements of any Federal, 
State, County and local agencies which may be applicable. 

 
(f) Adequate lighting for the event, including the parking area.  Based on the hours listed on Page 1, 

Item 3, a lighting plan will not be applicable for this event.   
 
(g) Security for the Event.  A written security plan shall be submitted to Casitas ten (10) days prior to 

the event which shall include the names of individuals assigned security duties, how they are to be identified as 
security personnel and what instructions they have been provided.  The security plan shall identify the person in 
charge and how said person will communicate with local law enforcement in an emergency.  Sponsor shall provide 

mailto:david.goldstein@ventura.org


 6 

certified medical personnel for this event and a designated first aid area. 
 

(h) Sponsor shall be responsible for ensuring the safety and security of persons attending this event, 
including, but not limited to, the event and parking areas and shall remain responsible for securing the event and 
parking areas by 7:00 p.m. the day of the event. 
 

(i) Sponsor will ensure that all parked vehicles vacate the watershed parking area prior to 7:00 p.m. at 
which time the area will be locked. All vehicles remaining must be removed no later than noon the day following 
the event.  
 

(j) Sponsor will make all necessary notifications and arrangements with the Ventura County Sheriff's 
and California Highway Patrol.  Sponsor shall be responsible for the cost incurred for security.  The Sponsor shall 
remain in the area until it is cleared of people attending the event. 

 
8. Sponsor’s Obligations.  Failure of Sponsor to carry out each and every obligation pursuant to this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to providing permits and insurance within ten (10) days of the event, shall be 
grounds for immediate termination by Casitas.  Notice shall be given by mail or e-mail to the Casitas 
Representative listed in Item 28 below. Casitas shall have no liability to Sponsor for such termination. 
 
9. Access.  Access to the Event Area will be through the auxiliary gate(s) off Santa Ana Road.  The gate(s) 
will be staffed at all times while they are open and will be locked shut when not guarded.  Event participants 
identified with valid hang tags will be allowed to access the event parking and the Recreation Area during normal 
Lake hours without incurring additional parking fees.  After normal Lake hours, participants will enter and exit 
through the auxiliary gate(s).  At no time shall Sponsor allow any type of watercraft whatsoever to enter the 
Recreation Area through any gate under Sponsor’s control.  All watercraft shall be directed to the Main Gate for 
proper invasive species inspection. 
 
10. Setting Up and Taking Down Equipment. 
 

(a) Sponsor shall have non-exclusive use to set up two (2) days immediately prior to the event and 
non-exclusive use for take-down one (1) day immediately following the event. 

 
(b) Casitas will not assume responsibility or be liable for items or equipment left on the premises by 

Sponsor or others associated with this event.  Items remaining after the take down period may be removed by 
Casitas, at its sole option, and Sponsor will be charged therefor. 
 
11. Sale of Alcohol.  The sale of alcoholic beverages shall be in compliance with the terms set forth in Section 
14 hereof. 
 
12. Commercial General Liability & Liquor Liability for the Event. This Section 12 regarding liquor 
liability shall not apply if alcohol is not sold at the event.  
 

(a) Coverage.    Coverage for commercial general liability shall be at least as broad as the following: 
 

(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability Coverage (Occurrence Form CG 
0001). 

 
(2) Insurance Services Office Liquor Liability Coverage (Occurrence Form CG 0033). 

 
 

(b) Limits.  Sponsor shall, during the course of this event, maintain limits no less than the following: 
 

(1) General Liability.  TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily 
injury property damage and personal injury.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or 



 7 

other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall 
apply separately to the project/location (with the ISO CG 2503, or ISO CG 2504, or 
insurers equivalent endorsement provided to Casitas Municipal Water District) or the 
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

 
(2) Liquor Liability.  If alcoholic beverages are served, ONE MILLION DOLLARS 

($1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  If a form with a 
general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to 
the project/location (with the ISO CG 2503, or ISO CG 2504, or insurer’s equivalent 
endorsement provided to the Casitas Municipal Water District) or the general aggregate 
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

 
(c) Required Provisions.  The general liability and liquor liability (if any) policies are to contain, or be 

endorsed to contain the following provisions: 
 

(1) The United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas Municipal Water District , 
their directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers shall be named as additional 
insured  (via ISO endorsement CG 2026 or insurer’s equivalent for general liability 
coverage) as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Sponsor; products and completed operations of the Sponsor; premises occupied or used by 
the Sponsor.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to Casitas Municipal Water District, their directors, officers, employees, or 
authorized volunteers. 

 
(2) For any claims related to this event, the Sponsor’s insurance shall state that coverage is 

primary as respects the United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas 
Municipal Water District, its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers, and 
any insurance, self insurance, or other coverage obtained or maintained by the United 
States of America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas Municipal Water District, their 
directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers shall be in excess of said primary 
coverage and not contributing. 

 
(3) Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches 

of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the United States of America (Bureau of 
Reclamation), Casitas Municipal Water District, their directors, officers, employees, or 
authorized volunteers. 

 
(4) The Sponsor’s insurance shall apply separately to the insured against whom claim is made 

or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 
 

(5) Sponsor shall provide written notice by U.S. Mail to Casitas within five days of Sponsor’s 
receipt of any notice informing Sponsor that coverage will be cancelled or non-renewed.  
Sponsor understands and agrees that the event can not occur unless the insurance specified 
in the Agreement is in full force and effect. 

 
(6) Such liability insurance shall indemnify the Sponsor against loss from liability imposed by 

law upon, or assumed under contract by, the Sponsor for damages on account of such 
bodily injury (including death), property damage, and personal injury. 

 
(7) The general liability policy shall cover bodily injury and property damage liability, owned 

and non-owned equipment, and blanket contractual liability. 
 

 (d) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.  Any deductible or self-insured retention must be 
declared to and approved by Casitas.  At the option of Casitas, the insurer shall either reduce or eliminate such 



 8 

deductibles or self-insured retentions. 
 

(e) Acceptability of Insurers. All of the insurance shall be provided on policy forms and through 
companies satisfactory to Casitas.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers having a current A.M. Best rating of no 
less than A-:VII or equivalent or as otherwise approved by Casitas. 
 

(f) Workers’ Compensation & Employer’s Liability Insurance.   By his/her signature hereunder, 
Sponsor certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code, and he/she will comply with such provisions before commencing the 
event.  The Sponsor shall cover or insure under the applicable laws relating to workers’ compensation insurance, all 
of the employees working on or about the event, in accordance with the "Workers’ Compensation and Insurance 
Act," Division IV of the Labor Code of the State of California and any Acts amendatory thereof.  The Sponsor shall 
provide employer’s liability insurance in the amount of at least ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) per 
accident for bodily injury and disease.    In the event Workers’ Compensation & Employer’s Liability Insurance 
does not apply to Sponsor, Sponsor shall execute a California Workers’ Compensation Law Certificate of 
Exemption. 
 

(g) Evidences of Insurance.  Within thirty (30) days prior to the event, Sponsor shall file with Casitas a 
Certificate of Insurance (Accord Form 25-S or equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative.  Such evidence 
shall include an original copy of the additional insured endorsement signed by the insurer’s representative.  Such 
evidence shall also include confirmation that coverage includes or has been modified to include (c) Required 
Provisions (1) through (7) above. 
 

(h) The Sponsor shall, upon demand of Casitas, deliver to Casitas such policy or policies of insurance 
and the receipts for payment of premiums thereon.  In the event evidence of such insurance coverage is not 
provided to Casitas within thirty (30) days prior to the event, Casitas shall, at its sole option, obtain such insurance 
coverage and charge Sponsor the cost thereof plus any administrative costs involved in obtaining said insurance. 
Failure to provide the required insurance coverage may result in the loss of the use of the facility.  Sponsor shall 
provide increased limits of insurance if required of Casitas by Casitas’ insurer at no cost or liability to Casitas. 
 
13. Indemnification for the Event.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Sponsor shall defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the United States of America (Bureau of Reclamation) Casitas, its directors, officers, employees 
or authorized volunteers from and against: 
 

(a) All claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees 
arising out of or resulting from any act, conduct, omission, negligence, misconduct or unlawful act (or act contrary 
to any applicable governmental order or regulation) of Sponsor, its officers, directors, employees, contractors, 
subcontractors, agents or volunteers. 
 

 (b) Any and all actions, proceedings, damages, costs, expenses, penalties or liabilities, in law or equity, 
of every kind or nature whatsoever, arising out of, resulting from or on account of the violation of any 
governmental law or regulation, compliance with which is the responsibility of Sponsor. 
 

(c) Any and all losses, expenses, damages (including damages to the work itself), and other costs, 
including all costs of defense, which any of them may incur with respect to the failure, neglect, or refusal of 
Sponsor to faithfully perform all of its obligations under the contract.  Such costs, expenses, and damages shall 
include all costs incurred by the indemnified parties in any lawsuits to which they are a party. 
 

(d) Sponsor shall defend, at Sponsor’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, 
actions or other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against Casitas or its directors, 
officers, employees, or authorized volunteers. 
 

(e) Sponsor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against Casitas 



 9 

or its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding. 
 

(f) Sponsor shall reimburse Casitas and its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers, for 
any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity 
herein provided. 
 

(g) Sponsor agrees to carry insurance for this purpose as set out in the specifications.  Sponsor’s 
obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the United States of 
America (Bureau of Reclamation), Casitas, or its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers. 
 
14. Permits and Notifications for the Event. 
 

(a) Sponsor shall notify and make all necessary arrangements, as applicable, with state and local public 
agencies, including, but not limited to, the Ventura County Sheriff's Office, California Highway Patrol, Ventura 
County Health Department, Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control and the County Fire Department.  If 
applicable, fire permits shall include those necessary for public use of a large tent and use of explosives and blank 
ammunition.  Sponsor agrees to comply with the license issued by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
issued for the event, including, but not limited to, hours, method of dispensing, and the cessation of sales upon the 
order of any peace officer or Casitas staff. 
 

(b) In the event any federal, state or local public agency, including the Bureau of Reclamation, does 
not require specific permits to be issued for the activities covered by this Agreement, Sponsor shall follow all rules 
and regulations governing the activities as if permits had been issued by these agencies. 
 

(c) Prior to commencement of any construction, Sponsor shall obtain from Casitas written approval of 
all plans, specifications and construction cost estimates for any improvements to Casitas’ premises.  Casitas’ 
General Manager may waive these procedures for minor construction, if in the General Manager’s opinion, these 
steps are not necessary. 
 
15. Overnight Camping in the Event Area.  Sponsor may have up to two units stay Friday - Sunday  night of 
the event weekend in the Event Area at no charge to provide security for Sponsor’s equipment. 
  

(a) Sponsor shall be responsible for staffing the auxiliary gate(s) when the gate(s) are open. 
 

 (b) Campers are not permitted to camp within two hundred feet (200') of the shoreline. 
 

(c) No waste water shall be discharged onto the ground.  All waste water shall be contained and 
disposed of properly at a local dump station. 
 

(d) Sufficient restrooms and trash receptacles shall be provided by Sponsor for campers and be 
conveniently placed for ease of use. 
 
 (e) Sponsor shall ensure that staff, vendors and participants camping at the event site shall comply 
with paragraph 20 hereinafter. 
 
16. Use of Animals at the Event.  This Agreement does not permit the use of animals.  
 
17. Use of Explosives at the Event.  This Agreement does not permit the use of explosives.   
 
18. Taxes and Assessments.  A taxable possessory interest may be created by this Agreement and Sponsor 
may be subject to the payment of property taxes levied on such interest.  Sponsor shall pay before delinquent any 
and all taxes and assessments levied against Sponsor by reason of Sponsor's use and occupancy of the Recreation 
Area.        
 



 10 

19. Publicity.  Sponsor hereby agrees that Casitas may utilize any publicity generated for, or because of, any of 
the events for the mutual and/or separate benefit of Sponsor and/or Casitas at no cost to Casitas.  Sponsor agrees 
that any printed material used by Sponsor shall include the words “Lake Casitas Recreation Area”. 
 
20. Compliance with Rules and Regulations.  The Sponsor hereby certifies that he/she has read and will 
comply with the Park rules, regulations, laws, etc. governing the Lake Casitas Recreation Area including, but not 
limited to, quiet hours after 10:00 P.M., and will be responsible for the activities and conduct of all people whose 
activities and conduct are a result of the event or arise out of the event.  Sponsor shall enforce the applicable park 
rules and regulations in the Event Area.  Failure to do so may result in forfeiture of the security deposit.  Any 
person or persons violating any Park rules or laws may be subject to citation and/or eviction from the Park at 
Casitas' sole discretion.  Sponsor must comply with Casitas' decision and, if necessary, assist Park Staff in the 
removal of any such person or persons. 
 
21. Raffles and Games of Chance.  Sponsor hereby agrees that no-one will be allowed to participate in games 
of chance, raffles, or any such activities, which contravene state and local lottery laws. 
 
22. Discrimination.  The Sponsor agrees that during the use of Casitas Municipal Water District's Recreation 
Area facilities, no qualified person shall be prevented from participating or denied the benefits of, or otherwise be 
subjected to discrimination because of the person's race, color, national origin, age or handicap. 
 
23. Title VI Compliance.  Sponsor hereby acknowledges that as a subrecipient of federal funds, Casitas 
Municipal Water District's Recreation Area cannot discriminate against anyone on the basis of race, color, natural 
origin, age or handicap in the provision of its services to the public.  Anyone who believes that he/she has been 
subjected to discrimination can file a complaint either with the Casitas Municipal Water District's Recreation Area, 
1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, CA  93022, or the Office for Equal Opportunity, U.S. Department of the Interior, 
Washington, D.C. 20240. 
 
24. Law & Jurisdiction Governing.  This Agreement is being delivered and shall be deemed entered into in 
the State of California and shall be governed by and construed according to the laws of such state.  Any dispute, 
claim or controversy between the parties shall be arbitrated and/or litigated in Ventura County, California.  If any 
provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
25. Entire Agreement. 
 

(a) This document constitutes the entire Agreement between Casitas and Sponsor for the use granted at 
the Lake Casitas Recreation Area for the event. 
 

(b) This document may be modified only by further written agreement between the parties hereto.  
Any such modification shall not be effective unless and until executed by Sponsor and in the case of Casitas, except 
as otherwise specifically authorized herein, until approved and executed by Casitas’ Park Services Manager, 
General Manager and/or Board of Directors.  
 
26. Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence for all the time frames of this Agreement. 
 
27. Term.   The term of this Agreement shall commence upon execution of this Agreement and 
terminate on August 31, 2022 unless sooner terminated pursuant to Item 8 hereof.  
 



 11 

28. Inquiries.  Please direct all inquiries regarding this Agreement to: 
 

CMWD: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager  
    11311 Santa Ana Road 
    Ventura, CA  93001 
     Tel: (805) 649-2233, ext. 111 
   Cell: (805) 797-1517 
   Email: cbelser@casitaswater.com 
 
29. Representatives.  The representatives of the parties to this Agreement are those set forth below: 
 
Rotary Club of Ojai West Foundation Inc.:      Casitas:  
David & Angela May     Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
P.O. Box 1501         11311 Santa Ana Road  
Ojai, CA  93024         Ventura, CA  93001 
Tel: (805) 907-2378         Tel: (805) 649-2233, ext. 111  
       Cell:  (805) 797-1517 
       Email: cbelser@casitaswater.com 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement this _______ day of October, 2017. 
 

SPONSOR:   
ROTARY CLUB OF OJAI WEST FOUNDATION, INC. 
 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________________ 

President 
 

CASITAS: 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
 

By: ____________________________________________ 
President, Russ Baggerly 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO APPROVE A PURCHASE ORDER 

CONTRACT WITH J & H ENGINEERING GENERAL CONTRACTORS, INC 
FOR PAVEMENT REPAIR  

DATE: NOVEMBER 2, 2017 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to approve a 
Purchase Order Contract with J & H Engineering General Contractors, Inc. (J & H) in an 
amount of $30,650 for pavement repair work on Mallory Way.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board awarded a contract to Spiniello Companies to replace the water meters within the 
Ojai service area at the June 14, 2017 meeting.  The Board authorized Change Order 2 to 
replace the pipe line on Eucalyptus Street and Mallory Way.  The pipe line replacement has 
been completed.  As part of the pipe line replacement, Casitas is required to repair the asphalt 
surface that was disturbed during the pipe line replacement. 
 
The City of Ojai has an annual asphalt repair project.  This year, Eucalyptus Street in the area 
of the pipeline replacement is scheduled to be resurfaced.  The contractor selected by the City 
by a public works bidding process was J & H.  J & H has provided Casitas with a cost estimate 
to complete the work on Mallory Way.  By using J & H and “piggy backing” onto the City 
contract, Casitas will save on mobilization cost for this work.  The cost for the work is similar to 
the bid prices in the City contract and is less than the cost under Casitas’ annual pavement 
repair contract. 
 
 
 



 

 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
1055 N Ventura Ave 
Oak View, CA 93001                                    November 2, 2017 
 
Subject: Trench Paving, Ojai  
   

QUOTATION #1813 
 

DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT 
 UNIT 
PRICE TOTAL

Mobilization - No charge if completed 
during City of Ojai Pavement Rehab 
paving operations 0 EA -$               -$                     

Grind out trenches and potholes in 5 
locations in Ojai. T-cut  to a depth of 1.5" 
and pave back same day. 1             LS 9,150.00$      9,150.00$           

Perform variable depth grind on 600' x 11' 
section of street. Haul off and dispose of 
material .Place 3" of Rubberized Hot Mix 
asphalt.  6,600    SF 3.00$              19,800.00$        

2 flaggers for traffic control 1             SHIFT 1,700.00$      1,700.00$           

30,650.00$    TOTAL QUOTATION

  
Exclusions: Permits, bonds, engineering, inspection fees, application fees, soils and/or compaction tests, survey and/or staking, 
striping and/or street markings, traffic control, de-watering, construction water and/or meter, haul off of excess and/or 
hazardous materials, street cleaning or restriping due to tracking of tack oil from paving operations. 

All work described herein this proposal to be completed in a substantial and workmanlike manner according to standard 
practices for the sum of unit prices shown.  

Prices are firm for acceptance 30 days from the date of quotation and start of work within 60 days from quotation date 
after which time quotation is subject to review and/or revision.  

ACCEPTANCE 

J & H ENGINEERING is hereby authorized to furnish all labor, equipment and materials required to complete the work as 
described herein and by signing this document we agree to pay the amount stated in said proposal according to the terms & 
conditions indicated within.  Furthermore, it is hereby agreed that the above stipulated payment terms are acceptable. 
Acceptance of this proposal constitutes agreement to include this proposal in any and all subcontract agreements. 

Company: _______________________________          Date: _______________________________ 

Accepted By: ____________________________ Print name: _______________________________ 

 

Thank You  



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Inter-Office Memorandum 

 
DATE:  September 21, 2017  
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
Re: Salary Range Adjustment and Job Description Revision to Create the Position for an Executive 

Administrator, Human Resources and Risk Management 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors acknowledge and support the General Manager’s 
recommendation for a salary adjustment and a revision of the job description to the Executive Administrator, 
Human Resources and Risk Management position.   
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
In 2004, the District hired the Assistant to the General Manager/Clerk of the Board and over the 13 years in the 
position, Ms. Vieira has expanded her knowledge, work scope and responsibilities for the District. 
 
In my efforts to identify comparable job duties and salaries, I arrived at the Executive Administrator position to 
encompass the role within the organization, the responsibilities for the Board and Executive Management and to 
manage the positions of Human Resources Manager and Safety Officer.  A salary adjustment to the M23 level 
is deemed appropriate based on comparable salaries. This position also retains authority in the absence of the 
General Manager, Assistant General Manager and Accounting Manager/Treasurer for various approvals and 
authorization of purchases including fiduciary responsibility to sign checks.    
 
While this action is within the authority of the General Manager, I believe that the District is best served by this 
action being reviewed by the Board of Directors.  A copy of the job description is attached for the Board’s 
information. 
 
In closing, the General Manager would hope that the Board of Directors would acknowledge and support the 
salary adjustment and revision of the job title and description for Ms. Vieira. 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER  
FROM: RON MERCKLING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS/RESOURCE MANAGER  
SUBJECT: WATER CONSERVATION OCTOBER 2017 UPDATE 
DATE: NOVEMBER 3, 2017 
 
 
During the month of October 2017, the following activities were completed by the Water 
Conservation Department: 
 

• Facebook and Website updates 
• UWMP development – ongoing 
• Media interviews: 

o Cheri Carlson, VCS reporter – story on drought – October 6 
o Perry Van Houten, OVN reporter – story on leak and pipe replacement in Ojai 

system – October 11 
o Claudia Boyd-Barrett, VCS reporter – story on Ojai water system leaks – 

October 31  
• Managing Cross-connection control program, working on upgrades to program 

o 2 survey visits 
o 101 BF letters 
o 23 calls 

• State Water Resources Control Board monthly report filed.  
• Turf Removal program – 6 active applicants in October 
• Continued meetings and phone calls with customers regarding allocation program 
• 4 water surveys completed 
• Demonstration garden work in front of main office - plantings and maintenance 

direction given. 3 tours for the month. 
• Responded to 6 water waste reports. Some of these reports required site visits, 

phone calls, coordinating with other agencies, and mailings 
• Rebates 

o 1 Weather based controller rebate 
o  4 High Efficiency toilet rebates 

• Landscape sign program – 3 new signs distributed 
• Water Conservation Advertising: 

o 3 ads in OVN paper and website ads 
o 1 ad Ojai Visitors guide 
o Bill message 
o Facebook ad 

 



• Attended the following meetings: 
o Ojai Day– 190 pledges made to conserve - October 21 
o CAPIO Social Media Training – October 4 

 
 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Water Resources Committee 

 
DATE:    October 24, 2017 
TO:       Board of Directors 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:    Water Resources Committee Meeting of October 24, 2017 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Mary Bergen 
Director Russ Baggerly 

 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Ron Merckling, Resources Manager 

 Public – Angelo Spandrio 
  
2. Public Comments.  

Mr. Spandrio asked for clarifications to the finances of the State Water Project and the billings 
paid by Casitas to the State. 

 
3. Board Comments.  

Director Bergen reported that the Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency is applying for the 
grant funding and it appears that the Agency has plenty of matching funding that has and will 
be contributed to the matching-fund grant. 
 

4. Manager Comments. 
The General Manager reported that the City of Ventura has certified its water use from 
Casitas, in accordance with the new agreement.  There was no export of water. 
 
The General Manager reported on the progress being made by Spinello to construct the 
pipeline in Mallory Way and Eucalyptus Street.  The final connections to the existing system 
will be completed next week.  All Spinello work is likely to be completed by the first week of 
November.  Staff are responding regularly to leaks in the Ojai system. 

 
5. Discussion regarding Tico mutual Water Company’s interest in alternatives for water 

service. 
The General Manager has met with representatives of Tico Mutual Water Company to discuss 
options for water service from the Casitas system.  The Committee reviewed Casitas’ options 
and preliminary cost estimates for service to the north area and the difficulties in serving the 
southerly area of the Tico service area. The General Manager will meet again with Tico to 
discuss the options.  

 
6. Update on the Critical Drought Protection Measures for the operation of Robles 



 2 

Diversion and Fish Ladder Facility. 
The General Manager reported on the progress of the Robles Biological Committee to derive a 
flow pattern that would meet the objective of the Critical Drought Protection Measure provision 
of the Robles Biological Opinion.  The Biological Committee will be meeting during the first 
week of November and work toward a method prior to December 2017. 

 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes 

 
 
DATE:  October 19, 2017 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
Re:  Personnel Committee Meeting of October 10, 2017 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.      Directors Mary Bergen and Bill Hicks 
   Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
   Rebekah Vieira, Assistant to General Manager 
   Employees: Michael Flood, Chelbi Kelley 
     
2. Public Comments.   

None 
 

3. Board/Manager comments.   
Director Hicks mentioned the article on the drought that was in the paper. He then asked 
for information from the Quagga meeting.  Mr. Wickstrum stated the meeting went well 
and was informative and United talked about the work they have done and we hope to 
have a more cooperative relationship. 
Mr. Wickstrum reported that staff had done more than a remarkable job with the 
transition of the Ojai system.  It has been a full court press for most of the district and 
staff has performed well. 
 

4. Discussion regarding recruitments. 
a. O & M Manager – interviews were completed. 
b. HR Manager – Receiving resumes. 
c. Treatment Plant – offer out. 
d. Distribution Foreman – filled internally 
e. Distribution Tech and Utility Worker positions – interviews to be held later in the 

month. 
f. E & M position – we have clarified the desired level and will go back out for 

candidates. 
g. Rangers – advertising and receiving applications 
h. Watershed Coordinator – receiving applications. 

 
5. Discussion regarding modification of title, job description and salary adjustment 

for the Assistant to the General Manager/Clerk of the Board.  
The Committee discussed the General Manager’s desire to modify the title, job 
description and salary level for the current Assistant to the General Manager/Clerk of the 
Board taking into account the increased responsibility and the fact that the Human 
Resources Manager and the Safety Officer positions will be reporting to this position.  
The committee supported this action and it will be moved to the board for approval. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 



Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2017-2018 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2017 / 2018 2016 / 2017

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 494 464 470 1,429 1,647

AG Ag 363 345 333 1,041 1,219

C Commercial 79 80 172 331 225

DI Interdepartmental 11 9 9 28 22

F fire 0 0 0 0 0

I Industrial 1 1 2 4 3

OT Other 24 25 32 80 65

R Residential 124 122 389 635 360

RS - P Resale Pumped 46 46 56 148 632

RS - G Resale Gravity 213 160 147 521 496

TE Temporary 1 1 2 5 7

Total 1,356 1,253 1,613 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,222 4,676

Total 2016 / 2017 1,562 1,528 1,586 1,295 1,001 689 355 195 338 970 1,086 1,286 N/A 11,891

CMWD 1,356 1,253 1,227

OJAI 0 0 386



CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) - Cost Analysis 

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2011 / 2012 0.00 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,658.37

2012 / 2013 831.82 223,462.77 14,836.68 0.00 239,131.27

2013 / 2014 29.89 91,878.06 3,835.65 0.00 95,743.60

2014 / 2015 0.00 68,457.10 0.00 0.00 68,457.10

2015 / 2016 6.12 152,811.84 2,938.86 0.00 155,756.82
2016 / 2017 110.54 352,965.75 48,725.29 0.00 401,801.58

July 0.00 2,472.00 9,968.94 0.00 12,440.94

August 0.00 609.50 3,184.37 0.00 3,793.87

September 0.00 220.50 0.00 0.00 220.50

October 0.00 0.00 667.43 0.00 667.43

November

December

January

Feburary

March

April

May

June

Total YTD Cost 0.00 3,302.00 13,820.74 0.00 17,122.74

Total Cost 978.37 935,437.52 95,255.59 0.00 1,031,671.48

Less: Scanned Document Revenue 2012 / 2013 -289.50

Less: Tax Assessment - County of Ventura: 2015 / 2016 -460,342.64

Less: Tax Assessment - County of Ventura: 2016 / 2017 -464,386.26

Less: Bond Pre-Payments -92,470.36

Less: Reimbursable District Staff Cost Bond Pre-payment -36,000.00

Total CMWD CFD 2013-1 Cost -21,527.78

Prepared by dcollin 10/31/2017 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

10/31/17

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGZW8 10/25/2024 $833,918 $810,410 2.014% 10/25/2016 3.90% 2515

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 31331VWN2 4/13/2026 $909,374 $863,448 1.901% 5/9/2016 4.15% 3043

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $852,749 $825,250 2.790% 3/28/2016 3.97% 3009

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,014,031 $994,520 3.000% 3/24/2016 4.78% 3338

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGWD 9/29/2027 $694,629 $673,021 2.354% 11/17/2016 3.24% 3569

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A3DL 9/8/2023 $1,574,473 $1,513,470 1.486% 10/13/2016 7.28% 2108

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,360,783 $1,350,810 1.625% 10/3/2012 6.50% 584

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A0EN 12/10/2021 $535,382 $517,455 1.107% 5/9/2016 2.49% 1480

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $763,827 $736,200 2.875% 2/19/2016 3.54% 2743

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313383YJ4 9/8/2023 $465,770 $440,871 1.203% 7/14/2016 2.12% 2108

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5VW6 7/10/2025 $1,023,773 $1,013,390 2.360% 5/10/2017 4.87% 2770

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130AIXJ2 6/14/2024 $926,557 $874,516 2.875% 8/2/2016 4.21% 2384

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF 6/11/2021 $641,373 $633,394 5.625% 1/16/2013 3.05% 1301

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA 11/17/2017 $1,001,553 $1,001,780 5.125% 1/3/2012 4.82% 17

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB 1/13/2022 $674,628 $675,056 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.25% 1513

*TB Federal National Assn 31315P2J7 5/1/2024 $795,116 $768,950 1.721% 5/1/2016 3.70% 2341

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ZR 9/6/2024 $1,472,877 $1,423,165 2.625% 5/25/2016 6.84% 2466

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0K3 4/24/2026 $2,528,563 $2,419,925 2.125% 5/25/2016 11.64% 3054

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE1 7/15/2018 $1,142,527 $1,155,848 1.375% 7/6/2010 5.56% 255

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF 1/15/2020 $1,143,221 $1,173,336 1.375% 11/18/2015 5.64% 795

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE 11/15/2023 $768,229 $792,257 2.750% 12/13/2013 3.81% 2175

Accrued Interest $136,862

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $21,123,356 $20,793,932 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $452 $452 1.07% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,879 $2,879 0.88% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $21,126,687 $20,797,263 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $21,130,137 $20,873,708

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $19,392,286 $19,073,403

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $301,312 $301,312

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $5 $5 0.19%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $21,428,004 $21,098,580

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $24,661,218 $24,342,335

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	11-08-17 Agenda
	10-25-17 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	October 25, 2017

	Bills
	5 YrAgreementMemo for Board-103117
	5Year-2018-22AgrForBoard-092617
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA
	FIVE YEAR AGREEMENT FOR EVENT
	OJAI WINE FESTIVAL
	MULTI-YEAR CONTRACT 2018-2022
	NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED as follows:
	or the greater of:
	(b) Ten percent (10%) of total gross receipts up to and including $100,000.00 as defined in (3) below.
	27. Term.   The term of this Agreement shall commence upon execution of this Agreement and terminate on August 31, 2022 unless sooner terminated pursuant to Item 8 hereof.
	CASITAS:
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

	Approve PO with J & H
	1813 - Ojai Trench Pave - CMWD (1)
	Salary Range Adjustment for Executive Administrator
	Water Conservation October 2017 Update
	Water Res Minutes 10 24 2017
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Per Minutes  10 10 2017
	Consumption 2017 - 2018
	CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Costs 2017-2018
	Investment Report 10-31-17

